

2
3 **THE WISCONSIN SURGICAL SOCIETY**
4 **A Chapter of the American College of Surgeons**
5

6 **ARTICLE I Name and Purpose**
7

8 Section 1. Name.

9 The corporation shall be known as the Wisconsin Surgical
10 Society - A Chapter of the American College of Surgeons
11 (hereinafter referred to as the "Society").
12

13 Section 2. Purpose.

14 The purpose of the Society shall be to endeavor to attain the
15 objectives of the American College of Surgeons, which include
16 (1) elevating the standards of surgery; (2) establishing a
17 standard of competency and character for practitioners of
18 surgery; (3) providing a method of granting membership in the
19 organization; and (4) educating the public and the profession
20 to understand that the practice of surgery calls for special
21 training and that a surgeon elected to Fellowship in the
22 College has had such training and is properly qualified to
23 practice surgery.
24

25 Section 3. Principal Office.

26 The Society shall maintain a principal office in the State of
27 Wisconsin.
28

29 Section 4. Address of Registered Agent.

30 The Society shall maintain a registered agent in the State of
31 Wisconsin.
32
33
34

35 **ARTICLE II Membership**
36

37 Section 1. Classes of Members.

38 The Society shall have one (1) class of voting and five (5)
39 classes of non-voting members, designated as follows:
40

41 Voting memberships:

- 42 (a) Active Members. Active members shall be residents of the
43 State of Wisconsin who are Fellows in the American College of
44 Surgeons. Active members shall be entitled to all privileges
45 of the Society, and each active member shall have one vote
46 upon all matters requiring approval of the voting members.

47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93

Non-Voting Memberships:

- (b) Non-Resident Members. Non-resident members shall be those individuals who otherwise qualify for membership as an active member pursuant to Section 1(a) above, but who are not residents of the State of Wisconsin. They shall be entitled to receive all of the privileges of the Society but are not entitled to vote and may not hold an office.
- (c) Associate Members. Associate members shall be individuals who are Associate Fellows of the American College of Surgeons, residents, or medical students. Associate members shall be entitled to attend annual meetings of the organization but are not permitted to vote or to hold office.
- (d) Affiliate Members. Affiliate members are allied health professionals such as Nurse Practitioners, Physician Assistants/Associates, research scientists or those with credentials approved by the Council who are involved with caring for the surgical patient. Affiliate members shall be entitled to attend annual meetings of the organization but are not permitted to vote or hold office.
- (e) Honorary Members. Honorary members shall be individuals whom the Council proposes for membership in the Society as an honorary member. Further, honorary members shall not be required to pay dues. Honorary members shall be entitled to receive all of the privileges of membership but are not permitted to vote or to hold office.
- (f) Senior Members. Senior members shall be active members who have reached the age of 65 years and wish to become senior members. Any active member who becomes incapacitated may apply for and, at the discretion of the Council, be admitted to senior membership without regard to his/her age. Also, an active member who is no longer active in the practice of surgery may apply for and, at the discretion of the Council, be admitted to senior membership without regard to his/her age. Senior members shall be entitled to receive all of the privileges of the Society but shall not be entitled to vote or hold office.

Section 2. Qualification and Removal.

- (a) Members shall continue in good standing as long as they have paid, and continue timely to pay, the dues required of them under their particular class of membership, which they select.

94
95 (b) Candidates who are otherwise qualified shall have completed
96 one year of surgical practice in the State of Wisconsin prior
97 to their election to active membership. The Council may, in
98 its discretion, waive the time in practice qualification and
99 admit a candidate for membership as an active member.

100
101 (c) Any member may be expelled from membership, for good cause
102 shown, by an affirmative vote of a majority of the Council
103 Members then in office.
104

105 Section 3. Application for Membership and Election of Members.
106

107 (a) Each individual applying for membership shall submit a
108 completed application form which shall include, but may not
109 be limited to, affirmation that the applicant holds:

- 110 (1) A current State of Wisconsin medical license;
111 (2) Fellowship in the American College of Surgeons
112

113 (b) Each individual applying for membership shall submit one
114 letter of recommendation from a member of the Society,
115 preferably who has an understanding of the surgeon's skill
116 and judgement since entering practice in Wisconsin.
117

118 (c) The completed application and supporting documentation shall
119 then be forwarded to the Membership Committee which shall
120 make a recommendation to the Council to accept the
121 application upon an affirmative majority vote of all members
122 of the committee. The slate of new members must then be
123 approved by an affirmative majority of Active members
124 attending the annual business meeting.
125

126 (d) Newly elected members shall be notified of their election and
127 must pay their initiation fees and annual dues within forty-
128 five (45) days of notification.
129

130 Section 4. Evidence of Membership.

131 Membership is recorded by the Society and is available by
132 request.
133

134 Section 5. Dues.

135 The amount of regular dues payable by the various classes of
136 members shall be determined from time to time by the Council
137 and shall be payable on January 1st of each fiscal year.
138

139 Section 6. Special Dues.

140 The Council shall determine any assessment of special dues it
141 deems necessary to conduct the affairs of the Society.
142

143 Section 7. Benefits.

144 Payment of dues shall make a member eligible for all of the
145 benefits accorded to the membership class in question except
146 those for which a separate registration fee approved by the
147 Council is required of all members attending the function.
148

149 Section 8. Waiver of Dues.

150 The Council may temporarily waive the dues of a member who is
151 unable to pay because of disability, illness or other
152 reasons. Such waivers shall be subject to review every year.
153

154 Section 9. Termination of Membership.

155 The failure of a member to pay dues or assessments within one
156 (1) year after said dues or assessments are originally due,
157 may result in the member being dropped from membership. This
158 decision requires an affirmative majority vote of the Council
159
160

161 Section 10. Privileges of Membership.

162 (a) Voting. Members in good standing of each class designated in
163 these Bylaws as a voting class shall have one vote upon each
164 matter submitted to a vote at any meeting of the Society.
165

166 (b) Other Privileges. Other membership privileges include
167 participation in activities, programs and publications of
168 the Society as may be designated from time to time by the
169 Council. Members will have password secure access to the
170 Society website.
171

172 Section 11. Membership Year.

173 Annual memberships shall extend for twelve months from the
174 first day of the fiscal year. Members joining the Society
175 after the first day of the fiscal year shall pay dues on a
176 calendar year basis.
177 -

178 Section 12. Regular Meetings.

179 There shall be regular meetings of the Society each year on
180 dates established by the Council. One meeting shall be the
181 annual meeting of the Society for the election of officers
182 and directors. Such other business as may properly and
183 regularly come before the Society may be transacted.
184

185 Section 13. Special Meetings.

186 Special meetings of the members may be held at any time and
187 place for any purpose or purposes, unless otherwise
188 prescribed by statute, on call of the President or Secretary,
189 and shall be called by the Secretary on the written request
190 of not less than ten (10) members of the Society entitled to
191 vote.
192

193 Section 14. Notice and Waiver of Notice.

194 Notice of any special meeting shall be given to each member
195 not less than ten (10) days nor more than fifty (50) days
196 before the date of the meeting at the direction of the
197 President, or the Secretary, or other officer or persons
198 calling the meeting. The purpose of and the business to be
199 transacted at any special meeting of the members shall be
200 specified in the notice.
201

202 Section 15. Quorum.

203 The voting members of the Society, present in person or
204 voting by email ballot, shall constitute a quorum for the
205 transaction of business at any meeting of members. The
206 affirmative vote of a majority of the members entitled to
207 vote represented at a meeting at which a quorum is present
208 shall be the act of the members.
209

210 Section 16. Conduct of Meetings.

211 The President, and in his or her absence, the President-
212 Elect, and in their absence any person chosen by the members
213 present shall call the meeting of the members to order and
214 shall act as chair of the meeting, and the Secretary of the
215 Society shall act as secretary of all meetings of the
216 members, but, in the absence of the Secretary, the presiding
217 officer may appoint any other member to act as secretary of
218 the meeting.
219

220 Section 17. Obligation and Conduct of Members.

221 All members of the Society are expected to accept the Mission
222 of the American College of Surgeons:

223 The American College of Surgeons is dedicated to improving
224 the care of surgical patients and safeguarding standards of
225 care in an optimal and ethical practice environment.

226 Members of the Society are expected to uphold the principles
227 of in the American College of Surgeons Fellowship Pledge
228 which is updated from time to time and located at the
229 following website:

230 <https://web4.facs.org/images/ebusiness/Posters/FellowshipPledgeCodeConductPoster-11x17.pdf>
231

232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278

ARTICLE III (Wisconsin Surgical Council)

Section 1. General Powers.

The affairs of the Society shall be managed by the Council

Section 2. Definitions:

1. "Officers": The President, Immediate Past President, President-Elect and Secretary/Treasurer
2. "Council members": The Officers, the ACS Wisconsin Governor, the Archivist, At Large Members (6), Committee Chairpersons
3. "Surgery Resident Council Member": Resident Representatives (non-voting) from each of the four (4) General Surgery Residency Programs in Wisconsin.

Section 2. Composition and Voting of Council Members.

- (a) Composition: The Council shall consist of the President, the Past President, the President-Elect, the Secretary-Treasurer, the ACS Wisconsin Governor(s), the Archivist, the Committee Chairs, Resident representatives and six (6) At Large members.
- (b) Voting. Each Council Member who is an Active Member of the Society, shall be entitled to one (1) vote at meetings of the Council, except for the President, who shall cast his or her vote only in the event of a tie vote. Surgery Resident Council members are not permitted to vote.

Section 3. Qualifications of Council Members.

The Council Members specified in Section 2 of this Article shall at all times be residents of the State of Wisconsin and active members in good standing. The Surgery Resident representatives must be Associate Members.

Section 4. Election and Term.

- (a) Method of Election/Appointment. Council Members of this Society shall be selected as follows:
 - a. Officers/At Large Members: See Section 12; sub-section g for description of Nominating Committee process.
 - b. ACS Governor: Recommended by the President and officially appointed by the American College of Surgeons
 - c. Committee Chairs: See section 12: Committees.
 - d. Resident Associate Members: The Surgery Resident members will be appointed by the President on referral from the current Surgery Residency Program Directors
(4)

279
280 (b) Term of Office. The Officers of the Society shall serve terms
281 as follows: President (one year), Past President (one year),
282 President Elect (1 year), Secretary/Treasurer (one year).
283 At Large Members shall hold office from the close of the
284 annual meeting for a term of three (3) years, or until their
285 successors have been elected and qualified.
286 Council At Large Members shall be limited to one (1) three-
287 year term and may not be re-elected for consecutive terms.
288 Two (2) directors shall be elected at each annual meeting to
289 replace the class of directors whose term expires at the
290 annual meeting.
291 Surgery Resident members will serve a two-year term.
292

293 Section 5. Resignation.

294 A Council Member may resign at any time by filing a written
295 resignation with the Secretary of the Society.
296

297 Section 6. Removal.

298 A Council Member may be removed from office with or without
299 cause by the voting members either at a regular meeting or at
300 any special meeting of the members called for that purpose by
301 the affirmative vote of a majority of the voting members
302 present in person or by proxy at such meeting.
303

304 Section 7. Vacancies.

305 In the event a vacancy occurs in the Council from any cause,
306 including an increase in the number of directors, an interim
307 Council Member shall be elected by the affirmative vote of a
308 majority of the number of Council Members of this Society
309 then in office until a successor is elected upon expiration
310 of the term of office for that Council Member
311

312 Section 8. Annual Meeting.

313 The Council shall meet at least once each year for the
314 purpose of transacting such business as may come before the
315 meeting.
316

317 Section 9. Regular Meetings.

318 The Council may provide by resolution for its regular
319 meetings, to be held at a fixed time and place, and upon the
320 passage of any such resolution such meetings shall be held at
321 the stated time and place without other notice than such
322 resolution.
323

324 Section 10. Special Meetings.

325 Special meetings of the Council may be held at any time and
326 place for any purpose or purposes, unless otherwise
327 prescribed by statute, on call of the President or Secretary,
328 and shall be called by the Secretary on the written request
329 of any five (5) directors.
330

331 Section 11. Compensation.

332 Council Members of the Society shall not receive compensation
333 for serving as Council Members. However, Council Members may
334 receive reimbursement for reasonable expenses incurred in
335 connection with corporate matters, provided that such
336 reimbursement is authorized by the affirmative vote of a
337 majority of Council Members then in office.
338

339 Section 12. Committees.

340 Committees shall be constituted to further the missions,
341 objectives and responsibilities of the Society. The
342 activities of each Committee shall be directed by a Committee
343 Chair, appointed by the President, who must be an Active
344 Member of the Society. The Committee Chairs will be members
345 of the Council and may concurrently serve as At Large Council
346 Members.
347
348

349 a. Ad Hoc Committees/Task Forces. The President may, from time
350 to time, appoint such ad hoc committees or task forces as
351 deemed necessary to conduct the affairs of the Society. The
352 structure, term, and duties of such ad hoc committees or
353 task forces shall be as determined by the President subject
354 to the approval of the Council Members.
355

356 b. Advocacy and Health Policy Committee. The President shall
357 appoint an Advocacy and Health Policy Committee. The Chair
358 of the Committee will serve a two (2) year term which is
359 repeatable for one (1) additional term. The committee
360 shall be comprised of one member appointed by the President
361 in collaboration with the Council and one member
362 recommended by the Chair for appointment by the President.
363 The Committee will monitor and review governmental
364 executive, legislative, and judicial actions that pertain
365 to the interests of the Society. The Committee will work
366 in liaison with the ACS Division of Advocacy and Health
367 Policy. Committee members will provide representation to
368 the Wisconsin State Medical Society. Committee members
369 may be appointed to represent the Society at other
370 organizations and forums, where matters pertaining to the

371 practice of surgery are being considered. See Attachment C
372 for the Advocacy and Health Policy Committee Charter.

373
374 c. Auditing Committee. The President shall appoint an
375 Auditing Committee who shall conduct an annual audit of all
376 financial statements and accounts of the Society. The Chair
377 of the Auditing Committee will serve a 2-year term which is
378 not repeatable. See Attachment D for the Auditing Committee
379 Charter.

380
381 d. Committee on Cancer. The President shall appoint a
382 Committee on Cancer, which will study and promote the
383 delivery of care to cancer patients. The Committee will
384 function as the Wisconsin Commission on Cancer for the
385 American College of Surgeons, and the Chair of the
386 Committee will serve as the Wisconsin State Chair for the
387 Commission on Cancer, ACS Cancer Liaison Program.

388
389 e. Committee on Trauma. The President shall appoint a
390 Committee on Trauma, which will study and promote the
391 delivery of care to trauma patients in the State. The
392 Chair of the Committee will be the Wisconsin member of the
393 ACS Regional Committee on Trauma (Region V). The Committee
394 will work in liaison with the American College of Surgeons
395 Committee on Trauma.

396
397 f. Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall be
398 composed of the Council Officers (President, President
399 Elect, Secretary/Treasurer), the Immediate Past President,
400 the ACS governor(s) and two At Large Council members (those
401 two members serving the last year of their 3-year term on
402 the Council). The executive committee shall have and may
403 exercise, when the Council is not in session, all the
404 powers of the Council in the management of the business and
405 affairs of the Society.

406
407 g. Industry Relations Committee: The President shall appoint a
408 Industry Relations Committee. The Chair of the Committee
409 will serve a two (2) year term which is repeatable for one
410 (1) additional term. The committee shall be comprised of
411 one member appointed by the President in collaboration with
412 the Council and one member recommended by the Chair for
413 appointment by the President. The duties of the committee
414 shall be to investigate industry relations for educational
415 and financial potential and serve as a vetting process for
416 industry relations. See Attachment F for the Industry
417 Relations Committee Charter.

- 418
419 h. Membership Committee. The President shall appoint a
420 Membership Committee. The Chair of the Membership Committee
421 will serve a 2-year term which is repeatable for one (1)
422 additional term. The Chair of the Committee will serve a
423 two (2) year term which is repeatable for one (1)
424 additional term. The committee shall be comprised of one
425 member appointed by the President in collaboration with the
426 Council and one member recommended by the Chair for
427 appointment by the President. The duties of the committee
428 shall be to recruit new members, to make recommendations to
429 the Council concerning applications for membership, to
430 maintain awareness of deceased members and to inform the
431 nominating committee regarding member status and candidacy
432 for advancement. See Attachment B for the Membership
433 Committee Charter.
434
- 435 i. Nominating Committee. The Nominating Committee shall be
436 composed of The President-elect, the two immediate Past
437 Presidents, and two Active Members of the Society. The
438 Active Members will serve two-year terms - each one being
439 appointed by the current President. The Committee shall
440 nominate candidates for offices at the annual meeting of
441 the Society. At least two months before the annual meeting,
442 the committee shall select a slate of nominees for officers
443 and two nominees for At Large Council Members to the class
444 whose terms will expire at the annual meeting. The chair of
445 the committee or his or her designee must contact each
446 person on this slate to secure his or her willingness to
447 serve and firm commitment if elected to attend every
448 meeting of the Council and the Society during his or her
449 term in office. See Attachment E for the Nominating
450 Committee Charter.
451
- 452 j. Program Committee. The President shall appoint a Program
453 Committee, which shall have the responsibility of arranging
454 programs for all educational meetings of the Society. The
455 Program Committee may authorize the payment of expenses of
456 guest speakers and an honorarium. The amount of the
457 honorarium shall be determined by the Council. See
458 Attachment A for the Program Committee Charter.
459
- 460 k. Vacancies. Any vacancies in the composition of any Standing
461 Committee or Ad Hoc Committee may be filled by Presidential
462 appointment for the unexpired term of the individual
463 vacancy.
464

465 **ARTICLE IV Officers**

466
467 Section 1. Number.

468 The principal officers of the Society shall be the
469 President, Past President, President-Elect, and Secretary-
470 Treasurer, each of whom shall be nominated by the Nominating
471 Committee and elected by the voting members at the annual
472 meeting. The American College of Surgeons Wisconsin
473 Governor(s) will serve as a member of the Council. The
474 Council may appoint such other officers and assistant
475 officers and agents as may be deemed necessary. Officers
476 shall be members of the Council.
477

478 Section 2. Election and Term of Office.

479 The officers of the Society shall be elected annually by the
480 voting members at the annual business meeting by the
481 affirmative vote of a majority of voting members present or
482 represented by proxy. If the election of officers shall not
483 be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon
484 thereafter as conveniently may be.
485

486 The President Elect, President and Immediate Past President
487 shall hold office from the close of the annual meeting for a
488 term of one year, or until a qualified successor is elected
489 upon expiration of the term of that officer, or until that
490 officer's death, or until that officer shall resign or shall
491 have been removed in the manner hereinafter provided.
492

493 The Secretary-Treasurer shall hold office from the close of
494 the annual meeting for a term of one year or until a
495 qualified successor is elected upon expiration of the term of
496 that officer, or until that officer's death, or until that
497 officer shall resign or shall have been removed in the manner
498 hereinafter provided. The Secretary/Treasurer may be re-
499 elected for up to a maximum of four (4) consecutive one-year
500 terms.
501

502 Section 3. Removal.

503 Any officer or agent elected or appointed by the voting
504 members may be removed by the voting members, whenever in its
505 judgment the best interests of the Society will be served
506 thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the
507 contract rights, if any, of the person so removed. Election
508 or appointment shall not of itself create contract rights.
509

510 Section 4. Vacancies.

511 A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation,
512 removal, disqualification or otherwise, may be filled by the
513 Council for the unexpired portion of the term.
514

515 Section 5. The President.

516 The President shall be the principal executive officer of the
517 Society and, subject to the control of the Council, shall in
518 general supervise and control all of the business and affairs
519 of the Society. The President shall, when present, preside at
520 all meetings of the Council. The President shall perform all
521 duties incident to the office of President, and such other
522 duties as may be prescribed by the Council from time to time.
523

524 Section 6. The President-Elect.

525 The President-Elect, during the year he or she is President-
526 Elect and prior to assumption of the office of the President,
527 shall, in the absence of the President, preside at all
528 meetings and perform any duties herein provided for the
529 President. In the event of the resignation of the President
530 at any time, or inability of the President to act, the
531 President-Elect shall assume the office of President for the
532 unexpired term. In the absence of both the President and the
533 President-Elect, the Council shall appoint a chair from among
534 those present.
535

536 Section 7. The Past President.

537 The Past President shall assist the President and President-
538 Elect in the performance of their duties, and shall perform
539 such other duties and have such authority as may from time to
540 time be delegated or assigned to him or her by the President
541 or by the Council.
542

543 Section 8. The Secretary-Treasurer.

544 The Secretary- Treasurer shall: (a) keep the minutes of the
545 members' and Council's meetings in one or more books provided
546 for that purpose; (b) see that all notices are duly given in
547 accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required
548 by law; (c) be custodian of the corporate records and of the
549 seal of the Society if one is authorized by the Council, in
550 which case the Secretary-Treasurer shall see that the seal of
551 the Society is affixed to all documents the execution of
552 which on behalf of the Society under its seal is duly
553 authorized; (d) send to each member a program of the
554 scientific meetings and of the business to be transacted at
555 the business meetings; (e) periodically publish a membership
556 list or roster; (f) have charge and custody of and be
557 responsible for all funds and securities of the Society;

558 receive and give receipts for moneys due and payable to the
559 Society from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such
560 moneys in the name of the Society in such banks, trust
561 companies or other depositories as shall be selected in
562 accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws; (g) attend to
563 payment of bills and obligations of the Society; and (h) in
564 general perform all duties incident to the office of
565 Secretary- Treasurer and such other duties as from time to
566 time may be assigned by the President or by the Council. If
567 required by the Council, the Secretary-Treasurer shall give a
568 bond for the faithful discharge of his or her duties in such
569 sum and with such surety or sureties as the Council shall
570 determine.
571

572 Section 9. Wisconsin Governor(s) - American College of Surgeons.
573 The American College of Surgeons Wisconsin Governor(s) will
574 serve on the Wisconsin Surgical Society Council during his or
575 her term. The Governor(s) are elected by the members of the
576 College at the Annual Meeting of Fellows, which is conducted
577 each year during the ACS Clinical Congress. The Governor
578 shall serve a three (3) year term and may be re-appointed for
579 one additional term. The Governor shall make an annual
580 report to the Council and the Annual Meeting of the Society
581 regarding activities of the ACS Board of Governors. The
582 Governor will seek advice from the Society regarding
583 information involving surgery in Wisconsin that should be
584 delivered to the American College of Surgeons Board of
585 Governors.
586

587 Section 10. Archivist.
588 An Archivist shall be appointed by the Council to collect and
589 maintain documents, photographs, and other material that
590 records the history of the Society. The Archivist shall
591 record the deaths of members and provide the Society with
592 appropriate obituaries and memorials regarding deceased
593 members.
594
595

596 Section 13. Compensation.
597 Elected officers of the Society shall not receive
598 compensation for serving as officers. However, officers may
599 receive reimbursement for reasonable expenses incurred in
600 connection with corporate matters, provided that such
601 reimbursement is authorized by the affirmative vote of a
602 majority of directors then in office.
603

604 Article V

605 College of Surgeons

606
607 The Chapter is a legal entity, separate and distinct from the
608 American College of Surgeons. The American College of
609 Surgeons is not liable for any debts or obligations of the
610 Chapter nor is the Chapter liable for debts or obligations of
611 the American College of Surgeons.
612 Neither the Chapter, nor any of its officers or members, is
613 authorized to represent or in way bind the American College
614 of Surgeons nor will any of them in any way hold themselves
615 out as being so authorized.

616
617

618 **ARTICLE VI Indemnification**

619
620 To the full extent permitted by law, the Chapter shall
621 indemnify any and all of its councilors, officers or
622 committee members, and every former councilor, officer or
623 committee member, for certain expenses and other amounts paid
624 in connection with legal proceedings in which any such person
625 becomes involved by reason of serving in any such capacity
626 with or for the Chapter. The Chapter may purchase and
627 maintain insurance on behalf of any or all councilors,
628 officers or committee members against any liability asserted
629 against any such person, and incurred in any such capacity,
630 whether or not the Chapter would have the power to indemnify
631 them against such liability under the provisions of this
632 Article.

633
634

635 **ARTICLE VII Fiscal Year**

636
637 The fiscal year of the Society shall end on the last day of
638 December in each year.

639
640
641

642 **ARTICLE VIII Amendments**

643
644 These Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed and new Bylaws
645 may be adopted by the members of this Society having voting rights
646 at any regular or special meetings at which a quorum is present,
647 by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the voting members
648 present or represented by proxy at such meeting. Electronic and/or
649 written notice of any proposed amendment of the Bylaws shall be

650 given to voting members with the notice of the meeting at which it
651 will be considered.

652

653

654

655 Certified a true and correct copy of the Amended and Restated
656 Bylaws adopted on the 3rd day of November, 2023 by the members of
657 The Wisconsin Surgical Society - A Chapter of the American College
658 of Surgeons.

659

660

661

662

663 Elise Lawson, MD, FACS
664 Secretary